
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Matthew Evans on 01432383690 or e-mail 
matthew.evans@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 

Agenda 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

Date: Friday 7 June 2024 

Time: 10.30 am 

Place: Online meeting/Herefordshire Council, Plough Lane 
Offices, Hereford, HR4 0LE 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Matthew Evans 

Tel: 01432383690 

Email: matthew.evans@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Licensing Sub-
Committee 
Membership  
  
 Councillor Polly Andrews (Chairperson) 
 Councillor Clare Davies  
 Councillor Dave Davies  

 
   

 
 



 
Herefordshire Council  7 JUNE 2024 
 

 

Agenda  

 Pages 
PUBLIC INFORMATION 
 

 

THE NOLAN PRINCIPLES 
 

 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.   NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY) 
 

 

 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 
of a Member of the committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda. 
 

 

4.   EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 

 In the opinion of the Proper Officer, the following item will not be, or is likely 
not to be, open to the public and press at the time it is considered. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: that under section 100(A)(4) of the Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Schedule 12(A) of 
the Act, as indicated below and it is 
considered that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

 
1 Information relating to any individual. 
 
7 Information relating to any action taken 

or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or 
prosecution of crime. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:        that under Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing 

Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, the 
public be excluded from the meeting as it is 
considered that the public interest in doing so 
outweighs the public interest in the hearing, 
or that part of the hearing, taking place in 
public. 

 

 

5.   REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF: RUBY CHINESE 
TAKEAWAY, 23 UNION STREET, HEREFORD, HR1 2BT CALLED BY 
WEST MERCIA POLICE - LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

11 - 42 

 To consider an application for a review of a premise licence in respect of The 
Ruby Takeaway, 23 Union Street, Hereford. HR1 2BT called by West Mercia 
Police under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

 

6.   APPLICATION TO GRANT A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF 43 - 132 



 
Herefordshire Council  7 JUNE 2024 
 

 

GEMFEST 2024 - LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 To consider an application for a grant of an occasional premises licence in 
respect of Gemfest 2024,  "Farmland opposite", Great Howle Farm, Howle 
Hill, Ross-on-Wye, HR9 5SL under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 

 Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

 Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

 Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

 Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

 Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

 Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

 Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

 Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

 Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

RECORDING OF THIS MEETING 
 

Please note that the council will be making a recording of this public meeting.  These 

recordings form part of the public record of the meeting and are made available for members 

of the public via the council’s website.  

 

To ensure that recording quality is maintained, could members and any attending members 

of the public speak as clearly as possible and keep background noise to a minimum while 

recording is in operation.  

 
Please also note that other attendees are permitted to film, photograph and record our public 

meetings provided that it does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 

 

If you do not wish to be filmed or photographed, please identify yourself so that anyone who 

intends to record the meeting can be made aware.   

5



 

Please ensure that your mobile phones and other devices are turned to silent during the 

meeting. 

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 

6



Licensing Hearing Flowchart 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Introduction 

Discussion  

Report by council 

 Outline of application 

 Summary of issues  
 
 

Parties address committee using 
spokesman if necessary  

Applicant addresses committee 

Members of committee can ask 
questions 

Cross examination generally not 
permitted.  

All parties to have equal maximum 
length of time to speak.  

Note:  hearing may be adjourned or 
heard in party’s absence. 

7





 

Marshall, Caroline (Democratic Services Officer) Page 1 30/05/24 
Version number 3 

The Seven Principles of Public Life  

(Nolan Principles) 

 

1. Selflessness 

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 

2. Integrity 

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to 
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. 
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material 
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve 
any interests and relationships. 

3. Objectivity 

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, 
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

4. Accountability 

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions 
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

5. Openness 

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent 
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear 
and lawful reasons for so doing. 

6. Honesty 

Holders of public office should be truthful. 

7. Leadership 

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They 
should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to 
challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

 

9





Document is Restricted

11

AGENDA ITEM 5





Document is Restricted

17





Document is Restricted

23





Document is Restricted

27





Document is Restricted

33





 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Senior LeadOfficer, 01432 261761, email: licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

Application to Grant a Premises Licence in respect of 
Gemfest 2024 – Licensing Act 2003 
 

Meeting: Licensing sub-committee 

Meeting date: Friday 7 June at 10:30 a.m. 
 
Report by: Senior Licensing Technical Officer 

Classification 

Open 

Decision type 

 
This is not an executive decision 
 

Wards affected 

Walford – Kerne Bridge 

Purpose 

 
To consider an application for a grant of an occasional premises licence in respect of Gemfest 
2024,  "Farmland opposite", Great Howle Farm, Howle Hill, Ross-on-Wye. HR9 5SL under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

 

Recommendation(s) 
That: 
The sub committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give appropriate 
weight to: 

a) The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives, 
b) The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties, 
c) The guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003, and 

d) The Herefordshire Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2020 – 2025. 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003 

 

43

AGENDA ITEM 6



Alternative options 
1. There are a number of options open to the sub-committee: 

a) Grant the licence subject to conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule 

accompanying the application and the mandatory conditions set out in the Licensing Act 

2003, 

  

b) Grant the licence subject to modified conditions to that of the operating schedule where the 

sub-committee considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and add 

mandatory conditions set out in the Licensing Act 2003, 

 

c) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 

application relates 

 
d) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premise supervisor, or 

 

e) To refuse the application  
 

Key considerations 

 
Licence Application   

 

2. The application for the grant of an occasional premises licence has received relevant 

representations and is therefore brought before the sub-committee for determination. 

 
3. Herefordshire Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2020 to 2025 states “All representation must 

be ‘relevant’ in that the representation relates to one or more of the licensing objectives, for 

example they must be about the likely effect of the grant of the application”. This followed 

paragraph 8.13 in the s182 Guidance which uses the same wording. 

4. The details of the application are: 

Applicant Gemfestival Ltd 

Agent  Not applicable 
 

Type of application: 

Grant 

 

Date received: 

12 April 2024 

28 day consultation 

started: 

13 April 2024 

28 Days consultation  ended: 

10 May 2024 

44



  Summary of Application 

 

The application can be found at Appendix 1 and states:  

 

Occasional Premises Licence for one event on 14 June 2024 to 16 June 2024 Only 

 

Recorded Music (Outdoors), Sale/Supply of Alcohol (consumption on the premises) 

Friday 14:00 – 03:00 

Saturday 12:00 – 03:00 

 

Late Night Refreshment (Outdoors) 

Friday & Saturday – 23:00 – 03:00 

 

Summary of Representations 

 

5. One (1) representation offering conditions was received from Herefordshire Council Trading 

Standards who act as a responsible authority.  The conditions were agreed with the applicant 

(appendix 2). No further representations from the responsible authorities (which include West 

Mercia Police and Environmental Protection – who deal with noise nuisance) were received. 

6. 15 relevant representation have been received from members of the public that the licensing 

authority have accepted as being relevant.  These can be found at Appendix 3. 

7. A number of relevant public representations contained information that was not relevant eg: 

increased traffic, wildlife issues and Scheduled Monument in the area 'Great Howle Camp'. These 

cannot be considered in determining the application in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003.  

8. 12 public representations were received from members of the public during the consultation 

period but were rejected as not being relevant.  These will remain on file. 

History 

9. In 2018, the premises held one (1) Temporary Event Notice (TEN) on 1 - 2 September for a 

maximum of 150 people (including staff/volunteers).  The event was for an end of Summer Party 

and was held between 18:00 – 01:00 

10. In 2023, the premises held a TEN for a maximum of 450 people (to include staff/volunteers) on 

16-17 September 2023 between 18:00 – 24:00 for a charity fundraiser. 

11. On 8 April 2024, a TEN was submitted for an event for a maximum of 499 people (to include staff 

and volunteers) on 14-16 June 2024 between 12:00 - 04:00 daily.  The notice was granted as no 

representations were received.   

NB: Only the Police or Environmental Health can object to a Temporary Event Notice if they 

consider it will lead to crime and disorder, public nuisance, or a threat to public safety or if there 

is a risk that children will be harmed. 

 

45



Community impact 

 

12. Any decision may have an impact on the local community. 

Environmental Impact 

13. This report is in relation to a premises license under the Licensing Act 2003 and as such there 
are minimal environmental impacts for the council. 

Equality duty 

 

14. Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the ‘general duty’ on public authorities is set out as 
follows: 

 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to – 

 

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by 
or under this Act; 

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it; 

c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
persons who do not share it. 

 

15. There are no equality issues in relation to the content of this report. 

16. This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and the residents 
from the local neighbourhood. Any of the steps outlined in section 1 of this report may have 
financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood and/or may have impact upon the 
day to day lives of residents living in close proximity to the premises. 

17. Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has the right to 
respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes business premises). 
This right may be interfered with by the council on a number of grounds including the protection 
of rights and freedoms of others. The First Protocol – Article 1 – also provides that every person 
is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his possessions and shall not be deprived of his 
possessions except in the public interest and conditions provided for by law.  Members must 
accordingly make a decision which is proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a 
balance between the rights of the applicant, residents and the community as a whole. 

Resource implications 

18. This report is in relation to a premises license under the Licensing Act 2003 and as such there 
are minimal resource implications for the council. 

 

 

 

46



Financial implications 
 

19. There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the council as licensing authority at this 

time. 

Legal implications 

20. As relevant representations have been received, the sub committee must determine the 
application under Section 3.5.7 (c) of the Herefordshire Council constitution. The 
representations must relate to the licensing objectives and the sub committee must determine 
the likely effect of the grant of the premises licences on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

21. The licensing authority must have regard to the promotion of the four licensing objectives 
namely; the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; the prevention of public nuisance; 
and the protection of children from harm in exercising its functions under the Licensing Act 
2003. Further regard should be had to the statutory guidance under Section 182 of the Act and 
the Council’s own statement of licensing policy. The options available to the licensing authority 

are set out in section 1 of this report. 

22. The sub committee should be aware of a number of stated cases which have appeared before 
the Administrative Court and are binding on the Licensing Authority. 

23. The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No: CO/5533/2006) 
at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative Court on 6 May 2008, 
[2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the Honourable Mrs Justice Black.  In 
this case it was summed up that: - 

24. A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 
section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do so but will need 
to give full reasons for their actions. 

25. Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to a licence 
with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’ must be presented to 
support the reason for imposing these conditions. 

26. This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of Bristol 
Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, CO/6920/2008 High Court of Justice Queen's Bench 
Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC 625 (Admin) 2009 WL 
648859 in which it was said: 

‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and proportionate for 
the promotion for licensing objectives’.  

27. In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an 

enforceable condition. 

 

Right of Appeal 
 
28. Schedule 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 gives a right of appeal which states: 
 
Schedule 5 Part 1 
 

47



Rejection of applications relating to premises licences 
 

1 Where a licensing authority— 

(a) rejects an application for a premises licence under section 18, 

(b) rejects (in whole or in part) an application to vary a premises licence under section 35, 

(c) rejects an application to vary a premises licence to specify an individual as the premises 

supervisor under section 39, or 

(d) rejects an application to transfer a premises licence under section 44, 

the applicant may appeal against the decision. 

  
 
Decision to grant premises licence or impose conditions etc. 
 

2(1) This paragraph applies where a licensing authority grants a premises licence under section 18. 

(2)The holder of the licence may appeal against any decision— 

(a) to impose conditions on the licence under subsection (2)(a) or (3)(b) of that section, or 

(b) to take any step mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that section (exclusion of licensable 

activity or refusal to specify person as premises supervisor). 

(3) Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to the application desires to 

contend— 

(a) that the licence ought not to have been granted, or 

(b) that, on granting the licence, the licensing authority ought to have imposed different or 

additional conditions, or to have taken a step mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that 

section, 

he may appeal against the decision. 

 
29. Appeals should be made to the Magistrates Court and must be made within 21 days beginning 

with the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision 
appealed against 

 

Risk management 

 
30.  There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a right of 

appeal to the Magistrates Court within a period of 21 days of being notified of the decision in 
writing. 

 

48



Consultees 

 
31. All responsible authorities and members of the public living within Herefordshire.  

 

Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 – Application Form 
Appendix 2 – Trading Standards Representation 
Appendix 3 – Public Representations 

 

Background papers 

None Identified  

 
 

Please include a glossary of terms, abbreviations and acronyms used in 
this report. 
 
TEN – TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE 

49





Application for a premises licence to be granted

under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We Gemfestival Ltd T/A GemFest
(Insert name(s) of applicant)

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the
relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 – Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

GemFest 2024
Eight-acre farmland opposite this address:
Great Howle Farm, Howle Hill, Ross-On-Wye, HR95SL, England

GPS Coordinates of 2 entrance ways
51.878382,-2.56737
51.876981,-2.564837

What 3 Words Coordinates of 2 entrance ways
///dispose.coast.sonic
///clenching.jousting.studs

Post town Ross-On-Wye Postcode HR95SL

Telephone number at premises (if any) +44 7941543887

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £0

Part 2 - Applicant details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as appropriate

a) an individual or individuals * ☐ please complete section (A)

b) a person other than an individual *

i as a limited company/limited liability
partnership

☒ please complete section (B)

51



ii as a partnership (other than limited
liability)

☐ please complete section (B)

iii as an unincorporated association or ☐ please complete section (B)

iv other (for example a statutory corporation) ☐ please complete section (B)

c) a recognised club ☐ please complete section (B)

d) a charity ☐ please complete section (B)

e) the proprietor of an educational establishment ☐ please complete section (B)

f) a health service body ☐ please complete section (B)

g)

ga)

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of
Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008
(within the meaning of that Part) in an
independent hospital in England

☐

☐

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in
England and Wales

☐ please complete section (B)

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one
box below):

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the
premises for licensable activities; or ☒

I am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or ☐

a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative ☐

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Mr ☐ Mrs ☐ Miss ☐ Ms ☐
Other Title (for
example, Rev)

     

Surname First names

Date of birth I am 18 years old or over ☐ Please tick yes

Nationality British

Current residential
address if different
from premises address

     

Post town       Postcode      
Daytime contact telephone number      

52



E-mail address
(optional)

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

Mr ☐ Mrs ☐ Miss ☐ Ms ☐
Other Title (for
example, Rev)      

Surname
     

First names
     

Date of birth       I am 18 years old or
over ☐ Please tick yes

Nationality     

Current postal address
if different from
premises address

     

Post town       Postcode      
Daytime contact telephone number      
E-mail address
(optional)      

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please
give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a
body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name
GEMFESTIVAL LTD
Address

78-78a Monnow Street,
Monmouth, Wales,
NP25 3EQ

Registered number (where applicable)
15191795

53



Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)

Limited Company

Telephone number (if any)

Part 3 Operating Schedule

When do you want the premises licence to start? DD MM YYYY
1 4 0 6 2 0 2 4

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end?

DD MM YYYY
1 6 0 6 2 0 2 4

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

An eight acre site, owned by Richard Freeman, on the Star Beech Hill Road.

The nearest house is owned by Richard Freeman, at postcode HR9 5SL, the field entrance
is the opposite side of the road. The site is an eight-acre field, usually used for potato
farming, and features a small woodland area.

The event will be entirely contained within the eight-acre plot, including parking, and has
access to the Great Howle Farm large driveway to act as a pick up and drop off point.

The event will host a max of 1500 attendees across the entire site.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any
one time, please state the number expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) Please tick all that
apply

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) ☐

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) ☐

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C) ☐

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D) ☐

54



e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) ☐

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) ☒

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) ☐

h) anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H) ☐

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I) ☒

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J) ☒

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

55



A

Plays
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the performance of a play take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors ☐

Outdoors ☐

Day Start Finish Both ☐

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
     

           
Tue            

           
Wed             State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read

guidance note 5)
                

Thur            

           
Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for the performance of plays at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
     

           
Sat

           
Sun

           

56



B

Films
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the exhibition of films take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors ☐

Outdoors ☐

Day Start Finish Both ☐

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
     

           
Tue            

           
Wed             State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please

read guidance note 5)
                

Thur

           
Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
     

           
Sat

           
Sun

           

57



C

Indoor sporting events
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4)
     

Day Start Finish

Mon            

           
Tue             State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please

read guidance note 5)
                

Wed            

           
Thur             Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
     

           
Fri            

           
Sat            

           
Sun            

           

58



D

Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment
take place indoors or outdoors or both –
please tick (please read guidance note 3)

Indoors ☐

Outdoors ☐

Day Start Finish Both ☐

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
     

           
Tue            

           
Wed             State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling

entertainment (please read guidance note 5)
                

Thur            

           
Fri             Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance
note 6)
     

           
Sat            

           
Sun            

           

59



E

Live music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the performance of live music take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors ☐

Outdoors ☐

Day Start Finish Both ☐

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

           
Tue            

           
Wed             State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music

(please read guidance note 5)
                

Thur

           
Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for the performance of live music at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance
note 6)
     

           
Sat

Sun

60



F

Recorded music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the playing of recorded music take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors ☐

Outdoors ☒

Day Start Finish Both ☐

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

DJ’s playing electronic dance music, amplified through a sound
system

           
Tue            

           
Wed             State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music

(please read guidance note 5)
                

Thur

           
Fri 14:00 03:00 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for the playing of recorded music at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance
note 6)
     

           
Sat 12:00 03:00

Sun

61



G

Performances of
dance
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the performance of dance take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Indoors ☐

Outdoors ☐

Day Start Finish Both ☐

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
     

           
Tue            

           
Wed             State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance

(please read guidance note 5)
                

Thur

           
Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
     

           
Sat

           
Sun

           

62



H

Anything of a similar
description to that
falling within (e), (f)
or (g)
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be
providing
     

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 3)

Indoors ☐

Mon             Outdoors ☐

            Both ☐

Tue             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
     

           
Wed            

           
Thur State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar

description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (please read
guidance note 5)
     

           

Fri

           

Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the entertainment of a similar description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
     

           

Sun

           

63



I

Late night
refreshment
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the provision of late night refreshment
take place indoors or outdoors or both –
please tick (please read guidance note 3)

Indoors ☐

Outdoors ☒

Day Start Finish Both ☐

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)
Food vendors, such as Beefy Boys, will provide food to customers
on site at the festival from a trader stand / van. There will be
outdoor seating.   

           
Tue            

           
Wed             State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night

refreshment (please read guidance note 5)
                

Thur

           
Fri 23:00 03:00 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
guidance note 6)
     

           
Sat 23:00 03:00

Sun

64



J

Supply of alcohol
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the supply of alcohol be for
consumption – please tick (please read
guidance note 8)

On the
premises ☒

Off the
premises ☐

Day Start Finish Both ☐

Mon             State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please
read guidance note 5)
                

Tue            

           
Wed            

           
Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
     

           
Fri 14:00 03:00

           
Sat 12:00 03:00

Sun

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as
designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the
checklist at the end of the form):

Name
Shaye Svikeris
Date of birth
Address

Postcode
Personal licence number (if known)
SJ024488

Issuing licensing authority (if known)
Swansea City Council

☐☐☐☐

65



K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

None

L

Hours premises are
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)
     

Day Start Finish

Mon

           
Tue            

           
Wed            

            Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be
open to the public at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

The premises will only be open during the hours of the annual
festival.

There is a small campsite that attendees will be able to camp at
overnight on Friday and Saturday night.

The small campsite area stays open until 12:00 (midday) on
Sunday 16th June.

No Licensable activities are to take place on the Sunday.

Thur      

           
Fri 14:00 23:59

           
Sat 00:00 23:59

Sun 00:00 12:00

M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

66



a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)

The Premises Licence Holder or a nominated deputy (in writing) must be on these licensed
premises and available to the Responsible Authorities and the Licensing Authority at all
times when Licensable activities are taking place.

Details of the Premises Licence Holder or his deputy who is on duty when licensable
activities are undertaken shall be recorded, on these premises, at the time. These records
shall be made available to the Licensing Authority or a Responsible Authority on demand.
Such record shall be kept for a period of 12 months after the end of licensable activities.
This information post event must be provided to the Licensing Authority or a Responsible
Authority within 24 hours of the request.

The name and contact details of the Premises Licence Holder's deputy(s) will be provided
to the Safety Advisory Group in writing no later than 7 days prior to the first date of the
festival.

A schedule will be provided of details of the personal licence holder who is on duty and
their areas of responsibilities when licensable activities are undertaken on these premises
at that time. This will be made available to the Licensing Authority and or other responsible
authority during the period of the event on demand. Such record shall be kept for a period
of 12 months after the end of licensable activities. This information must be provided to the
Licensing Authority or a Responsible Authority within 24 hours of the request.

The names and contact details of the personal licence holders will be provided to the
Safety Advisory Group no later than 7 days prior to the first day of the festival.

The draft of the Event Management Plan (EMP) will be produced at least 2 months prior to
the first day of the Festival and will be submitted to the Licensing Authority and all the
members of the Safety Advisory Group (SAG). Following consultation with the SAG, the
Licensing Authority shall notify the premises licence holder in writing that the draft EMP is
acceptable or unacceptable within one month of receipt. Where notification is not received
the draft EMP shall be deemed by the Premise Licence Holder to be agreed. The festival
shall not take place until the draft Event Management Plan has been agreed by the
Licensing Authority in consultation with the SAG. Once agreed no change shall be made to
the draft EMP without the agreement of the Licensing Authority

The final EMP will be submitted to the Licensing Authority and all the Safety Advisory
Group at least 14 days prior to the first day of the Festival. No further changes shall take
place to this document without the agreement of the SAG.

EMP and updates must be provided to the Safety Advisory Group at the same time as they
are provided to the responsible authorities and Licensing Authority. The EMP will be a
working document providing details of how the Festival is to be conducted and how safety
issues, identified in the event risk assessment, are to be addressed. The EMP will include
an event risk assessment and provide specific details on the following areas (where
applicable):

● Health and Safety Responsibilities
● Venue and Site Design
● Fire Safety
● Major Incident Planning (Emergency planning)
● Communication
● Crowd Management (including steward and security numbers and their roles)

67



● Transport
● Management Structures
● Barriers
● Electrical Installations and Lighting
● Food and Alcohol
● Water
● Merchandising and Special Licensing
● Amusements,
● Attractions and Promotional displays
● Sanitary Facilities
● Waste Management
● Sound: Noise and Vibration
● Special Effects, Fireworks and Pyrotechnics
● Camping
● Facilities for People with disabilities
● Medical, Ambulance and First Aid Management
● Information and Welfare
● Children - including Lost Children's Policy
● Performers
● TV and Media

The Festival must take place in accordance with the Final agreed EMP produced
for the Festival following approval by the Licensing Authority.

Security and Stewards
Numbers of Personnel
A written schedule shall be provided at least 1 month prior to the start of the event,
of the number and position of SIA Security personnel to be employed on site by
hour of day, during the period the premises is licensed for licensable activities.
Such schedule must be agreed by the event operational commander of West
Mercia Police at least 14 days prior to the first day of the festival

A written schedule shall be provided at least 2 months to the start of the event, of
the number and position of personnel to be employed as Stewards on site by hour
of day during the period the premises is licensed for licensable activities. Such
schedule must be agreed by the event operational commander of West Mercia
Police at least 14 days prior to the first day of the festival.

The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or a person nominated by them in writing for
the purpose, shall maintain a register of door supervisors which shall be kept on
the premises showing the names and addresses of the door supervisors, their
badge numbers. The register shall be made available on demand for inspection by
Police, Licensing Authority or an authorised officer of the Security Industries
Authority.

No person under the age of 18 years will be employed as stewarding personnel or
SIA badged staff

No security staff or stewards are to consume or be under the influence of alcohol
or drugs whilst working. They shall be fit to carry out the duties required of them.

Security Uniforms and Security Logs
All security and stewarding personnel will be readily identifiable by means of a
tabard bearing a job title and a conspicuous unique personal identification number.
This identification number will be displayed prominently on the front and rear and

68



will be at least 30mm high and the width of the written number shall be at least 10
mm.

No person shall perform the role of stewarding personnel without wearing a
tabard.

No person shall perform the role of security personnel (apart from a plain clothed team)
without wearing a tabard. All plain clothes security personnel shall carry an identity badge
issued by the Premises Licence Holder confirming that they are security personnel which
shall be produced to a member of the Licensing Authority or Police on demand.

A Traffic Management Plan (TMP) will be drawn up for the Festival and will be provided to
relevant agencies no later than 28 days prior to the festival. Such plan shall be agreed by
the Safety Advisory Group. The TMP will cover all aspects of vehicle and pedestrian
access to and egress from the site during the ' load in and load out as well as for the
Festival itself. The TMP will include arrangements for vehicle routes, emergency service
routes, public transport, shuttle buses, taxis, pedestrian issues, a dispersal policy, car
parking and a traffic signage plan. In addition it will ensure that sufficient trained marshals
are available for the management of public transport (for hire or reward) on site and in
particular private hire or licensed taxis

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

A minimum of two directors of GEMFESTIVAL LTD, the intended Premises License Holder,
will be on site at all times.

The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or a person nominated by them in writing for the
purpose will employ SIA staff on a risk assessed basis. The risk assessment shall be in
writing and shall be made immediately available on request to an ‘authorised person’ (as
defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police

The Premises Licence Holder or DPS or a person nominated by them in writing for the
purpose, shall maintain a register of door supervisors which shall be kept on the premises
showing the names and addresses of the door supervisors, their badge numbers and shall
be signed by the door supervisors as they commence and conclude duty. The register
shall be made available on demand for inspection by an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by
Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003), or the Police or an authorised officer of the SIA.

An incident log must be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on request
to an authorised officer of the Council or the Police, which must record the following:

(a) all crimes reported to the venue
(b) all ejections of patrons
(c) any incidents of disorder

69



(d) seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
(e) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

Toughened/Polycarbonate/plastic containers shall be used at all times when the premises
operate for licensable activities. In the event that toughened/polycarbonate/plastic bottles
cannot be provided by the suppliers, then all drinks will be dispensed and served in
toughened/polycarbonate/plastic containers.

A safe shall be provided at the premises for the storage of knives and other seized illegal
items. This shall be kept locked at all times. The keys securing the safe shall be held by
the premises licence holder or authorised (in writing) duty manager/head door person and
shall not be accessed by any other person. A policy in relation to the seizure and disposal
of drugs shall be written down and kept at the premises. Such policy shall have meet with
the agreement of the local police licensing officer for the area and be signed off by them.
The policy shall be produced on demand of an authorised person

Amnesty bins may be made available on entrance to the festival before bag searches,
should the SAG request, alongside signage dictating the policy for disposing of illicit
substances using the bins. These bins shall remain chained to the fence posts of the
entrance way, be manned by stewards during the day and emptied into the safe regularly.

A shuttle bus shall be available until gates close each day, allowing for a small number of
attendees rejected due to issues such as not having their ID or so on.

c) Public safety

First aid
A First Aid Kit capable of treating for 21-50 people shall be kept fully stocked at the
premises and kept in the dedicated medical area.

An accredited First aid trained person must be on duty at all times when the premises
operate for licensable activities. [An accredited First Aid trained Person is defined as a
person who holds a current certificate in first aid at work (FAW) and that certificate contains
the information required by the Health and Safety (First – Aid) Regulations 1981]

In the event a Premises License is granted and the event moves to a capacity of up to
1500 people, the event shall be treated as a Tier 3 event. As such, in line with
requirements made by the Purple Guide, we shall ensure 24-hour cover is available on site
given attendees are camping overnight.

These provisions will include but are not limited to:

● A HCP (Paramedic) on-site during peak hours (20:00-08:00) Friday & Saturday
● An additional HCP (Tech) during peak hours (18:00-08:00) Friday & Saturday
● 2 x First Responders on-site during peak (20:00-08:00) Friday & Saturday
● 1 x Emergency Care Assistant and 1 x First Responder on site in off peak times

(13:00-20:00 Friday, 08:00-20:00 Saturday, 08:00 - 12:00 Sunday
● A dedicated sitting treatment area
● Bays with stretchers in a private area out of site of festival attendees

Additionally, so as to reduce any potential strain on local health services, we shall provide
an ambulance on-site for the duration of the event.

70



Event Safety Coordinator
The Premises Licence Holder will appoint an Event Safety Co-ordinator who will be able to
authorise and supervise safety measures. The Event Safety Co-ordinator will be
responsible for:

● Monitoring of contractors
● Liaison with contractors
● Checking of method statements and risk assessments
● Preparation and monitoring of site rules
● Safety inspections and audits
● Collection and checking of completion certificates
● Communication of safety information to contractors and employees
● Monitoring and coordinating safety performance
● Coordinating safety in response to a Major Incident
● Liaison with nominated officers from Herefordshire Council.

The name and contact details of the Event Safety Co-ordinator will be supplied via the
Safety Advisory Group no later than 14 days prior to the start of the event.

The premises licence holder will employ sufficient experience stewards in line with the risk
assessment.

The premises licence holder shall have available for inspection at the premises a detailed
emergency plan.

Electrical wiring and distribution systems
Temporary electrical wiring and distribution systems shall be signed off by a competent
person prior to any licensable activity taking place at the premises. The competent person
must be a member of a recognised electrical association such as NICEIC, NAPIT, ECA or
other association as agreed by the licensing authority. The sign off certificates shall be kept
on the site during the event and shall be produced for inspection on demand of an
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003).

Structures
The Premises Licence Holder will ensure that all temporary structures have been
inspected and signed off as being safe prior to the commencement of their use. A copy of
each safety sign off certificate shall be kept on the site during the event and shall be
produced for inspection on demand of an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of
the Licensing
Act 2003). In this condition the term temporary means any structure which could cause
injury to someone if it collapsed.

The premises licence holder shall have available for inspection at the premises a detailed
emergency plan.

Special Effects
The installation and use of laser beams, pyrotechnics or real flames, explosive or highly
flammable or smoke/foam producing agent, for any purpose shall not be permitted without
prior notification to the Licensing Authority. A detailed description of the method of use,
shall be made to the Licensing Authority not less than 14 days prior to the day on which
the above equipment is to be used.

71



Lanterns
Paper lanterns will not be sold on site and will be listed within the ticketing terms and
conditions as items that may not be brought to the venue.

Sanitary Facilities
We shall provide enough portaloos on site, at a ratio of people:toilets of 50:1.

Water
We shall provide as much bottled water as is required for all attendees, staff and artists on
site, entirely free of charge, and available at numerous collection points around the site,
including but not limited to; all bars, all stages, all entries and exits of the site. We shall
provide a ratio of bottles:attendees as requested and/or recommend by the SAG.

c) Public safety

We undertake risk assessments for the event that outlines these steps - general risk
assessment, fire risk assessment, medical risk assessment.

We hire qualified first aiders (medical staff trained to emergency response level 3) to be
on-site for the duration of the event.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Noise or vibration shall not emanate from the festival site so as to cause a nuisance.

A draft Noise Management Plan will be produced 2 months prior to the first day of the
Festival and will be submitted to the Herefordshire Council - Environmental Health (EH)
who shall notify the premises licence holder (within one calendar month of receipt) in
writing whether it is acceptable or unacceptable. The final plan shall be submitted to EH at
least 14 days prior to the event for approval. The event shall not take place until EH has
agreed the plan. Once agreed no change shall be made to the plan without the agreement
of EH and the event must comply with the agreed plan.

72



Irrespective of noise levels prescribed in the Noise Management Strategy, The Premises
Licence Holder or DPS or any person who has been nominated as their deputy must
immediately comply with any request to adjust noise levels/ frequency spectra made by an
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) .

The Noise Levels are to be checked at the intervals and locations as agreed within the
Noise Management Strategy.

Any testing of sound equipment will not take place before 09.30hrs and will last for no
more than 2 hours on any one day.

The person responsible for noise management shall be available for daily meetings with
Environmental Health Officers from Herefordshire Council, if required.

The Premises License Holder will maintain a noise log which will be available at all times
for inspection by Herefordshire Council.

A noise hotline will be installed and publicised so that local residents can report any noise
issues directly to the Festival. All calls will be logged by time, location and contact number
and address will be requested. The log will be kept on site and be readily available at the
request of a duly authorised Council officer.

The noise hotline number will be operational throughout the hours of regulated
entertainment.

If requested by a duly authorised Council officer, all calls received by the noise hotline will
be reported immediately to the on duty representative from the Council.

Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall be displayed at all
exits to the premises requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and to
leave the premises and the area quietly.

e) The protection of children from harm

No person under the age of 18 shall be permitted on the premises at any time.

The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written down and
kept at the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of the Police or an
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised
Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council. Prominent, clear and legible signage
(in not less than 32 font bold) shall also be displayed at all entrances to the premises as
well as at, at least one location behind any sale area advertising the scheme operated

A written register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who have
been unable to provide required identification to prove their age. Such records shall be
kept for a period of 12 months. It will be collected and reviewed on a daily basis by the
Designated Premises Supervisor and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as
defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards
Officer of Herefordshire Council on demand.

73



No adult entertainment or services or activities must take place at the premises (Adult
Entertainment includes, but is not restricted to, such entertainment or services which would
generally include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-table, or pole-dancing, performances
involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or
entertainment involving strong and offensive language).

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. ☐

I have enclosed the plan of the premises. ☒

I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable. ☒

I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be
designated premises supervisor, if applicable. ☒

I understand that I must now advertise my application. ☒

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application
will be rejected.

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is
not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability
partnerships] I have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in
the United Kingdom (please read note 15).

☒

☐

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTIONWITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHOMAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A
PERSON TOWORKWHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULTWITHOUT
LEAVE ORWHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENTWILL BE
LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCEWHERE THEY DO SO IN THE
KNOWLEDGE, ORWITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Part 4 – Signatures (please read guidance note 11)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance
note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

Declaration ● [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I

74



am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject to a
condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on
of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I
cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance
note 15).

● The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK
(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing
work relating to a licesable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or
her proof of entitlement to work, if appropriate (please see note 15)

Signature

Date 08/04/2024

Capacity Director

For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please
state in what capacity.

Signature

Date      

Capacity      

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 14)
     

       
     

Notes for Guidance

1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout
and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where
your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will
be and its proximity to the premises.

75



Consent of individual to being specified as premises supervisor

I

of

hereby confirm that I give my consent to be specified as the designated premises
supervisor in relation to the application for

[type of application]

by

[name of applicant]

relating to a premises licence
[number of existing licence, if any]

for

[name and address of premises to which the application relates]

Shaye Svikeris

Grant of a Premises Licence

GEMFESTIVAL LTD

TBC

Gemfest 2024
Farmland – nearest postcode HR9 5SL

Great Howle Farm,
Howle Hill,
Ross-On-Wye,
HR9 5SL

76



and any premises licence to be granted or varied in respect of this application made
by

[name of applicant]

concerning the supply of alcohol at

[name and address of premises to which application relates]

I also confirm that I am entitled to work in the United Kingdom and am applying for,
intend to apply for or currently hold a personal licence, details of which I set out
below.

Personal licence number

[insert personal licence number, if any]

Personal licence issuing authority

[insert name and address and telephone number of personal licence issuing authority, if any]

Signed

Name (please print)

Date

2

GEMFESTIVAL LTD

Gemfest 2024
Farmland – nearest postcode HR9 5SL

Great Howle Farm,
Howle Hill,
Ross-On-Wye,
HR9 5SL

SJ024488

Swansea City Council

Shaye Svikeris

08/04/2024

77



78



79



80



From: Trading Standards – Herefordshire Council  
Sent: 22 April 2024 12:10 
To: Licensing 
Subject: Gemfest Application 
 
Good morning, 
 
I have spoken with the applicant and can confirm the below condition is to be added in relation to 
Staff Training. There are no other representations to be made by myself. 
 
All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in responsible alcohol retailing to 
the minimum standard of BIIAB Level 1 or any equivalent training course within 1 
month of commencing employment at the premises. No person shall be authorised to 
sell or supply alcohol until this training is completed. Training records shall be kept 
on the premises and produced to the police or an “authorised person” (as defined by 
Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of 
Herefordshire Council on demand. 

 
 
Trading Standards Practitioner 
Herefordshire Trading Standards Service 
Herefordshire Council 
Plough Lane 
Hereford 
HR4 0LE 

 

Free, impartial legal guidance for businesses: https://www.businesscompanion.info/ 
 

81

https://www.businesscompanion.info/




1 
 

                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                          

 

                                                                                                                        2nd May 2024. 

Licensing Team, Herefordshire Council, 

                                                                    Please accept this as an objection and representations to this 

proposed event. GemFest 2024 Eight-acre farmland opposite this address: Great Howle Farm, Howle 

Hill, Ross-On-Wye, HR95SL, England. 

                                                                   An application made for a premises licence under section 17 of 

the Licensing Act 2003 and in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

                                                                   It is considered that this application is wholly unsuitable in 

terms of the four statutory objectives.  

                                                                   

Prevention of Crime and disorder. 

The length of hours requested for licensable activity is ridiculous for an event of this nature and 

should be construed as “trying it on”. In effect young people attending this event would have access 

to intoxicating liquor for fifteen hours a day over a period of two days. At best tremendously 

excessive at worst irresponsible. 

No consideration given to search arches or wands. In this day and age small items are secreted in 

various parts of the body not just put inside pockets or discoverable with a cursory pat down. 

Surely an event of this size and nature would warrant a continued Police presence. There is a 

potential for disorder. I am informed that the last “Festival” that was held near to this location 

erupted into chaos. There was also an allegation of serious sexual assault. 

Apparently, there will be campers on site. This venue is in a large open field which surrounded by 

more open fields which are separated by low fences or hedgerows. How are the applicants going to 

stop people coming and going of their own free will particularly during the hours of darkness. It is 

not beyond the scope of impossibility for theft from tents and other more serious crimes will occur.  

The event is of such length that it will turn into a popular venue when the normal licensed premises 

in Ross on Wye close. Considerable numbers of people turning up, who have already been drinking, 

with or without tickets expecting entry. Once they are denied entrance for not having a ticket or 

being “under the weather” what happens to them. Are they free to roam Howle Hill unmolested? 

The staff employed at the venue are there precisely to be at the venue. Do they have an interest in 

what happens outside of its boundaries. Do they have any powers to deal with anything outside its 

boundaries. Simple answer is none. 

83



2 
 

The last “Gemfest” was a twenty first birthday party for a local resident. It was held in a field further 

away from significant habitats. It was much smaller than this one. Most of the attendees were known 

to each other. This application proposes to metamorphosis from a parochial event to a large scale 

commercial “rave” open to all, in a totally unsuitable neighbourhood with no infrastructure, poor, 

narrow unlit roads. 

 

Public Safety. 

The amount of medical/first aid staff employed for this event is inadequate. This is an application to 

keep safe up to 1500 persons who will have been drinking for long periods of time. 

Emergency services struggle to navigate the narrow lanes at the venue at the best of times. This 

event will generate a noteworthy increase in traffic and with the minibuses and taxis consistently 

dropping off and picking up at all hours of the day and night will hinder the progress of such vehicles 

to respond to calls. It will also delay emergency service vehicles to requests for help to persons not 

connected to the venue. 

The venue is a farmland potato field. This field is currently waterlogged and unfit to accommodate 

parked cars. I notice that part of the field is assigned to car parking. If this situation does not improve 

it will be incapable of being used for car parking in this case the cars will again be abandoned on the 

side of the road wherever the owner thinks fit. More frustration for road users and residents alike. 

People who attend in their own vehicles will be tempted to Drink/Drive as transport options are 

limited at the location. Local minicabs are all but extinct run in normal circumstances by small family 

concerns. There simply isn’t the capability to cope with the proposed amount of people that this 

event will generate in this vicinity. Even with the proposed minibus shuttle many people will not 

want to be dropped off at Hereford/ Gloucester railway stations. They will demand to be let out at 

various points in between. When let out they are then free to roam the streets possibly behaving 

badly as they go. The stations close to passengers well before those attending the event must leave. 

What accommodations have been made for these people, or are they expected to wander the 

streets of the towns and cities, some may not even bother to use any form of transport and stay in 

the local area after a day of drinking and revelry. A recipe for disaster. 

 

Prevention of public nuisance. 

The venue is in a quiet rural area that surrounded by small settlements is by no means accustomed 

to what is being proposed in this application. It is exceedingly quiet. The type of recorded music 

being transmitted from five stages will inevitably bring disturbance to residents. The type of music 

proposed is not gentle, or peaceful. On the contrary it is loud, brash and intrusive. Drum and bass 

and garage music are renowned for their volume and their bass beats. It is music that will carry 

across the open fields. It is unacceptable to expect the residents to have to endure two nights of this. 

It is of no benefit to anyone excepting the organisers. 

This event will substantially increase the amount of people and traffic in the locale. An area that 

should not be asked to cope with such pressures. Vehicles coming and going. Loud, persistent 

“music” emanating from five sound stages. Shouting “DJs” and it is naïve not to expect large numbers 

of people drifting aimlessly through the local sleepy settlements creating noise and, perhaps bad 

84



3 
 

behaviour or worse. These disruptions to ordinary life in the neighbourhood being worsened at the 

times of peak entrance or exit to /from the proposed venue. 

The sounds of this event will carry to the local settlements and cause sleepless nights. There is no 

escaping it. It really does not matter that there is provision for a “noise hotline”. These are rarely 

monitored and in my experience those that are answered pay “lip service” to the complainant and 

do nothing. Is it proposed that there be an EHO on site for the duration of the event to monitor 

sound, and to answer any residents complaints. 

This event will take place in a dark skies environment. I note there are several light towers on site. 

These will doubtlessly be of extreme illumination. Is it really a good idea to promote the dark skies 

ethos and then ignore it in the name of a “big noisy party”.  

Protection of children from harm. 

Providing there are sufficient SIA qualified staff and there is no relaxation of the age challenge 

principles I trust that no children will have access to the venue. Although I do have concerns that this 

widely publicised event may attract young people who are not of the relevant age for entry to gather 

to try to gain entry when and if the opportunity arises. 

                                   In conclusion I respectfully ask that this application be refused on the grounds 

stated above. It is in an entirely unsuitable area. There a is a clear danger as regards the amount of 

traffic and type of traffic on the narrow, unlit roads.  The licensable activities duration is far too long. 

It is a formula for drunkenness, anti-social behaviour and worse.  

                                  The local residents in the area will suffer un-necessary disruption and discomfort 

should this application be allowed to progress. 

                                  I am an elected member of Walford Parish Council. I make these representations 

as a concerned member of the public and not as a Parish Councillor.  

                                 Yours sincerely, 

                                                             

 

 

  

 

 

 

85



1 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Applica�on, Howle Hill 
 

 

 

 

01/05/2024 

 

Re; Gem Fest Licencing Applica�on, Howle Hill  

Dear All, 

Re the above applica�on, my concerns are; 

With the best laid plans, the organisers cannot control what happens outside of this fes�val site. The 
area is a steep rural hill loca�on. It is surrounded by fields and unclassified, unlit, narrow, single-track 
roads, which have na�onal speed limit status. This is not a field, next to main roads, such as, 
Motorways, A and B roads. Indeed, this is a loca�on that has no ameni�es or public transport within 
its proximity. There is nothing here, but dark skies, wildlife, peace, quiet and tranquillity. 

Is there going to be any Police presence? The area is too large to cover effec�vely, with only a 
handful of stewards. Therefore, difficult to ensure the preven�on of crime and the safety of residents 
and the fes�val goers.  

Are drones, CCTV, ANPR, Walkie Talkies, being u�lised? In this present climate of people being 
stabbed, are knife arches available or wands? I appreciate there is a safe for weapons and 
contraband but what about the valuables of those atending, especially as ID will be asked for and 
this can mean passports and driving licences being brought to the fes�val. People under the 
influence of alcohol will be more likely to lose or misplace them or worse have someone steal them. 
The type of music and style of fes�val, suggests the main target is for young persons. The licence 
hours are for long periods of alcohol being available, people will be more vulnerable than they 
usually are.   

Across the hills, there are many exit and entrances routes, along with places to disappear into that 
can be u�lised to gain access to this site. Residents walk around here all the �me. It is very easy to 
access on foot from all direc�ons, as well as by car. 

Vehicles can be wai�ng or parked up, in any of the nearby roads. The fields can easily be accessed by 
cu�ng across them to sneak into the fes�val area or worse they can cut across and access residents 
gardens and of course they can pop back and forth to the parked cars, which are outside the fes�val 
area itself.  

The �cket holders cannot be kept from leaving the site on foot. Are you going to use force to prevent 
them from leaving? A�er all they are not prisoners. Stragglers wondering around will happen, 
especially as not everyone is staying overnight on site. They will look for alterna�ve places to get 
their heads down. 

 

86



2 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Applica�on, Howle Hill 
 

The emergency exits shown, are into the surrounding fields, because they are easy to access, move 
around in and leave via. Not everyone follows rules and signs, especially under the influence of 
alcohol and this is a large open area. Unless the barriers installed are going to be very high, you 
won’t keep everyone on site or others out.  

People being dropped off, either by private vehicles or taxi will wander around. You can only give 
advice to persons, but you certainly can’t guarantee that they then take it, including following any 
adver�sed route or pick up or drop off point. There are too many roads that people can arrive and 
leave from here. 

Those crossing over the narrow already over trafficked thoroughfare, to get to the adver�sed pick up 
and drop off point at Great Howle Farm, face a dangerous, and hazardous walk. Remember this is a 
na�onal speed limit area, which gets very, very dark at night, and staff are easily distracted dealing 
with the many very young persons that this type of fes�val with its style of music will no doubt 
atract. Many of whom will be under the influence of alcohol and anything else, making maters 
worse. Surely an accident wai�ng to happen, especially as there are mul�ple ways to leave the fields 
here, not necessarily where the ligh�ng or stewards are, and pedestrians could therefore pop up 
anywhere in the surrounding area. Beter to have the pickup and drop off on site, not across the 
road. Great Howle Farm is not the venue. If it is to be included, then a risk assessment surely must 
cover its grounds too, not just the entrance as people wander off. 

It is difficult to navigate here. The emergency services struggle, especially due to the width of the 
roads which impedes the larger emergency vehicles, such as the fire brigade, slowing them down 
even further. The venue is several miles away from any help from the emergency services or others, 
who are not all 24 hours or local but rely on cover from elsewhere. The shortage already exists of 
Police, on the ground in normal daily ac�vi�es. What happens to those that cause problems or 
commit crimes? Are you going to lock them up or detain them somewhere, whilst wai�ng for 
support to arrive? It could be a very long wait, which in turn could �e up more staff than expected, 
especially if someone is lashing out or in a figh�ng mood. Are staff trained to deal with these 
situa�ons and the wait? Underage persons that turn up and are refused entry, what happens to 
them? This is a rural loca�on. Are the Police expected to come back and forth, especially over these 
distances? 

It could be a long �me before help arrives. 1500 plus staff, are a lot to control and or assist when it 
goes wrong. Even more so in the early hours at a venue which is not suitable and is too remote, with 
poor road infrastructure surrounding it, pu�ng people in unnecessary danger and harm and 
ul�mately lives at risk. It would be beter to hold a fes�val in a more appropriate loca�on with easier 
access to main roads, and nearer to facili�es. This in turn gives beter, faster, support and safety to all 
at the fes�val, including staff and residents.  

Driving is a must here. The majority of those bringing their own vehicles, will not be familiar with 
these roads.  

The possibility of unfit drivers must be considered with this applica�on and the consequences that 
may follow on these unlit narrow roads. Are there going to be self-tes�ng kits or something similar 
available?   

87



3 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Applica�on, Howle Hill 
 

Any accidents can easily block the narrow roads for long periods of �mes. Impeding resident’s lives 
and preven�ng them from going about their day-to-day business and any emergency situa�ons they 
have. There are a lot of older residents here and ambulances can be frequent visitors, along with 
carers and pharmacy deliveries. It is also a flood diversion route for when the River Wye floods the 
roads below. 

There are no streetlights here. It gets very, very dark, making visibility worse. People unfamiliar with 
the area will have that as an added hinderance. You cannot say everyone will use the shutles or 
follow designated routes. 

Many accidents and near misses happen regularly. The Council are not aware of most these days, as 
the criteria to report has changed. So many accidents no longer get reported. People also don’t want 
their insurance costs to spiral, so don’t record them.  

The �mes shown on the applica�on form, means the unlit, narrow roads will be in use day and night. 
The mass exodus of those not staying, people gathering to leave or enter or those who loiter when 
entry to the public is closed, will exacerbate this. There will s�ll be late comers, there always are. 

As stated, there are no shops or public ameni�es here. There is no public transport for miles. Fes�val 
atendees will be totally reliant on the shutle buses and cars or taxis to get them from A to B. They 
won’t wait necessarily to be picked up and dropped off. Some will start walking, because the long 
distances the shutle buses will travel, will mean delays in returning to the site. For example, 
Gloucester is 14 miles away, so people will get restless wai�ng for the shutle buses to return and 
pick them up and inevitably will wonder off.    

Most of the surrounding town like areas here, close early. Especially Ross Town, which is the nearest 
and has no trains. There is a limited bus service to the botom of the hills. Public transport stops 
running when the fes�val is s�ll in full swing. Are people just le� to their own devices, either in this 
very rural area or those dropped off in towns that have shut for the night? Surely a safety issue. 
What happens to those that have nowhere to go? What state will some of these people be in a�er 
drinking for the length of hours the licence applica�on is asking for?  

Are the shutle buses provided, going to take people anywhere they want to or only to specific 
designated places and how many are there?  

It is very difficult to get a taxi to come here. Just trying to pick up my car from an MOT proved 
impossible un�l the next day, as many taxis stop running a�er office hours here and won’t come up 
the Hills of Walford Parish or will only go as far as the crossroads for example on Howle Hill. It is very 
easy to become stranded here. Pre booking with a pickup and drop off �me, is normally required 
here. Are there going to be dedicated taxis available? If so, how many? 

Every event has people coming to the area for other reasons, some illegal, who may not want to go 
inside but hang around nearby. Drug supply for example. If persons are searched on entry, that’s 
great but it doesn’t stop them taking drugs before they enter or from persons hanging around in the 
public areas near the site. Without patrols in this vast area, impossible to prevent. You cannot as 
stated stop people leaving the site, especially in the dark or early hours of the morning. It’s very dark 
here. How many staff are staying overnight? Is the perimeter being patrolled? Is CCTV being used 
inside and or outside the venue? 

88



4 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Applica�on, Howle Hill 
 

A previous music fes�val was held in a field at Great Howle Farm, which had a serious sexual assault 
on a 19-year-old reported and apparently some�me a�er 2017, a Cannabis Farm, was discovered at 
Great Howle Farm, whilst it was being rented out. It’s a very dark remote area.   

P133441/S December 2013 relates to a planning applica�on for a road at the venue, which was 
refused, will the fes�val be used to get one approved? 

This is a dark skies area and extremely quiet. This cannot be emphasised enough. The wildlife here is 
fantas�c, with many nigh�me pollinators. The Council has numerous planning applica�ons and 
objec�ons that evidence this. For example, those that obtained approval had condi�ons that include 
ligh�ng restric�ons, and others were refused due to the area we are in and landscape harm they 
pose. They also highlight other issues including the road infrastructure being unsuitable. A few of the 
planning examples; P223981/F Land at Litle Howle Farm Howle Hill Ross on Wye Herefordshire HR9 
5SL / P204443/O Land Adjacent to The Old Kilns Church Lane Howle Hill Ross-on-Wye / P190316/F 
Walford, Kerne Bridge, Waters Edge Sharman Pitch Howle Hill Ross-on-Wye Herefordshire / 
P221182/F Land South of Springhill Cotage Howle Hill Ross On Wye Herefordshire HR9 5SH / 
P172215/O Land adj. to Howle Hill Crossroads, Howle Hill Ross-on-Wye Herefordshire.  

These planning applica�ons also show drainage issues here. Any runoff from the site could be 
poten�ally an issue.  

I’m sure the lights at the fes�val will ruin this dark sky area and disturb the wildlife and residents.  

This area is mainly used by people who want peace and tranquillity, and those that like to walk, horse 
ride, or cycle. How will they be protected from the extra traffic, people, light, and noise that comes 
with a fes�val of 1500 persons, plus staff and those dropping off and picking up? Noise travels, as it 
echoes over the open countryside, with the added hilltop wind which makes maters worse.  

Pollu�on and noise in general will be significantly higher, in an area like this, even the refreshment 
areas are all outside, in fact with this fes�val, everything is outdoors, including the stages, campsite, 
food, sea�ng areas, car park, drop off and pick up points and the very bright ligh�ng. 

There is no protec�on against the increase in noise from this site’s recorded music which is being 
amplified though sound systems. This is not folk music, but recorded drum and bass and garage 
music, by defini�on, loud and “thumpy”, being played late into the early hours. Its full affect will be 
felt, coupled with the noise of vehicles and people’s ac�vi�es on and off site, when travelling and 
moving along the road system, at all �mes of day and night. The car stereo systems, slamming of 
doors, horns, loud chatering and singing, over the loud music, will echo in the open countryside. 

It’s summer so car windows along with windows of resident’s home will be open, to cool off.  

The fes�val goers ul�mately are not contained to just the site area but will inevitably affect the 
residents. You can’t turn down the general noise of a fes�val, even with the hotline. It too open here. 

Residents also have horses and their own livestock in nearby fields and neighbouring Farms, such as 
Howle Farm too. How will the increase in noise and light in the area affect them?  

Are there any road liter patrols being provided? 

 

89



5 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Applica�on, Howle Hill 
 

What happens to the historic Great Howle Camp, an oval medieval earthwork scheduled monument 
listed with Historic England – 1001745, which is sited where the mul�ple stages are going in the 
trees? 

 

 The Magic Map shows the stages to be directly on top of the site; 

 

 

 

These trees are also housing wildlife. 

90



6 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Applica�on, Howle Hill 
 

The field to the le� of the site has the graves of the family that once owned Great Howle Farm. Next 
to the footpath entrance being used for the fes�val. (Google Maps used) 

 

 

Longview is a residen�al home, currently being constructed and is very close to the venue. 
(P223981/F Land at Litle Howle Farm Howle Hill Ross on Wye Herefordshire HR9 5SL).  

This is not shown on the submited maps, I assume as it is being developed. I believe it should be 
taken into considera�on, especially as this fes�val seems to be gathering momentum and likely to 
return next year. Longview is shown as being 261.51m from the sound stage, using Google Maps and 
measuring tools. 

 

91



7 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Applica�on, Howle Hill 
 

I no�ce Google measuring distances vary depending on if you go via the road, or via the direct route 
across the fields;  

Other residen�al loca�ons shown on the applica�on, appear to be nearer than stated, when I used 
Google measurements, in Google Maps, where the photos were also taken from.  

Clearly, if measured in a direct route across the fields and not following the road, there are 
differences between mine and the applica�on. Sound doesn’t follow a road. I appreciate this could 
be down to who does the measuring.  For example; 

Litle Howle Farm to the sound stages is 468m not 500m. 

 

 

Another address shown as 480m is 448.90m. 

 

92



8 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Applica�on, Howle Hill 
 

Another, 564.92m not 660m. 

 

 So, there appears to be discrepancies, re the distances of resident’s homes, depending on who is 
measuring but residen�al addresses appear to be nearer than stated. 

Resident’s incomes could be depleted that have holiday lets or B&B’s, which many do. Tourists see 
here as a holiday des�na�on, with the river is at the botom of the hills. The tranquillity will be 
ruined, ul�mately pu�ng tourists off. They along with residents, wildlife, livestock, and horses will all 
suffer.    

I believe Gem Fest started last year and was sold to locals as a one off, for a known and respected, 
resident’s 21st birthday. (in the field owned by Mr Freeman and by Grove Lodge who had apparently 
given permission). Private vehicles were s�ll arriving at 10pm, coming from the various routes across 
the hills. Residents were approached for direc�ons at Deep Dean, and Howle Hill crossroads, by 
young drivers looking for the party. Balloons were on some of the hedges. Vehicles were seen coming 
from the direc�ons of Kiln Green and Ruardean too. The cars were full of people, playing loud music. 
You can’t control people off the site, and which routes they take, without road closures and 
diversions, which would affect the residents. This area is too big with too many ways in and out to 
achieve this.  

Now the birthday has returned as a large public fes�val. The field has changed, moving nearer to the 
surrounding setlements, and numbers have increased significantly. It has been extensively 
adver�sed online. No one knows the true numbers that will atend. Last minute rushes are not 
uncommon or gate crashers. The licence is a�er all for 1500 persons. 

What happens next year, it gets even bigger again? Surely this field is then open to even more 
fes�vals and events if this gets approved. The road infrastructure cannot cope as it is, let alone with 
all these people, plus those here to assist the organisers and those that turn up without �ckets and 
all that they bring with them, all entering this area.  

93



9 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Applica�on, Howle Hill 
 

There is no capability of soundproofing the fes�val in the open countryside and it appears there is no 
Installa�on of any sound limi�ng equipment of any kind. It will of course adversely affect residents 
and there are many stages now not just one. Each batling to be heard over the others. 

This is a far cry from students atending a birthday party, where some residents were invited to keep 
Mum and Dad company. There was only one stage under cover of a metal shed. This is an atempt to 
put on a large scale “commercial rave”. At a totally unsuitable venue and in an area which doesn’t 
have the infrastructure to support.  

Overall, it is hard to comment fully without access to the future planned documents that are 
referenced in the applica�on, such as the Event Management Plan (EMP) and Traffic Management 
Plan (TMP). Residents aren’t even aware of what special effects will be used. Are they too loud, such 
as fireworks? Or light intrusive?  

To my knowledge the Parish Council and residents haven’t been engaged with prior to this 
applica�on being submited. Why do residents need to suffer this. There are many fes�vals in 
Herefordshire as it is. Why is there a need for another one?  

Page 3 of Herefordshire Council’s, Statement of Licensing Policy 2020/2025; Herefordshire is a mixed 
commercial and residential area, with many areas lying in tranquil rural surroundings, whose 
amenity Herefordshire Council has a duty to protect, and one of Herefordshire Council’s aims is to 
protect and enhance our environment and keep Herefordshire a great place to live. These factors 
may be taken into account in relation to applications that may have a material impact on a vicinity. 

This fes�val will impact this beau�ful, peaceful, tranquil, rural hilltop area. Residents here will be 
adversely affected.  

There is no benefit to the community here. 

This applica�on should be refused.   

 
Yours sincerely 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

94



1 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Application Howle Hill 
 

 

 

 

05/05/2024 

 

Re; Gem Fest Licencing Application, Howle Hill  

Dear All, 

 

Further to my previous representations, I would like the following added please. 

Gem Fest and Pull Up Recordings go hand in hand and have continually posted their progress 
together, along with their experiences online, using many platforms, such as, TikTok, YouTube and 
Facebook.   

Having randomly viewed some of these videos, I was appalled at the irresponsible behaviour 
displayed. Vomiting in the street and being chased by Police, seemed acceptable, to all. 

It is now clear and was not known to the residents, that the 21st birthday event in 2023, was 
intentionally used as the starting point to launch Gem Fest as a brand. It is also clear from the video 
that the multitude of fields available here, were the target and are referenced in the video. This video 
is entitled, “How I turned a 21st Birthday into a festival.”  

https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7246501236009176347 

Posted 2023-6-19 

It is also clear that tickets for this unlicenced event have been on sale now since November 2023. 

https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7303239482474532129 

Posted 2023-11-19 

Just how many tickets are in the public domain, already? Gem Fest 2 video states this year will be 
bigger and better, and others clearly state open to all. (50 seconds into video). 

https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7276066030575783201 

Posted 2023-9-7 

There has been plenty of time for the organisers to liaise with any persons that may have concerns, but 
they didn’t. In fact, they only want to talk once they believe you are objecting. 

Having known for months the festival was going to take place, they only submitted a licensing 
request, last minute. 

The landowner that has supplied the last two fields, owns many, many more here.  

I noticed, posters for Gem Fest were in Ross Town in February 2024. 

95

https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7246501236009176347
https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7303239482474532129
https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7276066030575783201


2 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Application Howle Hill 
 

 

 

The many videos online are too numerous to put here. I hope you take the time to view these in full 
and or randomly select some yourselves from the others available online, via various platforms, if 
they are not taken down. The majority of the venues are enclosed areas such as buildings and not the 
wide open, rural fields here. 

It is not known, if any of the following were licenced; 

• Staff vomiting in the streets after playing drinking games, whilst working 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=G7YMZRo1pts 
(4mins 36 seconds) Please watch entire video. 

 
• Staff issuing extra tickets on the day, after selling out, 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9M3RyEuVX1E 
(2mins 23seconds) Again worth watching entire video. 

 

96

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=G7YMZRo1pts
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9M3RyEuVX1E


3 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Application Howle Hill 
 

• Staff refusing entry as the tickets have run out, so then start a one out, one in policy. 
Where are people going to be asked to wait if they decide to start this policy here? 
Where is the transport they arrive in, going? 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=RO_CiJJRWfU 
(3mins 14seconds) 
 

• Early birds that arrive too soon. Staff tell them to go and have a drink. The reply was 
that they already have been drinking. Where are they going to send those that turn up 
too early? This venue is miles away from anywhere. Has anyone informed Ross Town 
Council, as this is the nearest town? If they are already drinking prior to the event 
starting, just how much is safe, with the long hours asked for on this licence and how 
do they expect people to travel, when they send them away? Clearly driving under the 
influence will be a realistic issue here. 
 

• Not disposing rubbish correctly bur leaving it on top of a Royal Mail Post Box. 
https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7334842082277870881 
 

• Chased by police and police close them down. 
https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7344834642706533664 
 

• Red Bull car clearly acts as a magnet attracting the many people wanting to attend. 
How many of these cars will be travelling to this venue and what route are they 
taking? We are adjacent to Wales, Herefordshire, and Gloucestershire here. Has 
anyone informed them? It is not inconceivable for there to be long convoys of cars 
following together. How will these be handled, especially on arrival here, with these 
narrow roads, which will inevitably be obstructed by them? 
https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7335168901216472353 
 

The advice online is to use Great Howle Fam in the sat navs. 

https://www.pulluprecordings.co.uk/gemfest 

It is impossible to say you can control the road infrastructure here, without numerous diversion signs 
and road closures, along with persons directing traffic. All of which will seriously impact the residents 
and users, including the emergency services and the like, attending addresses. The Air Ambulance is 
frequently used because of the rural location and distances involved to hospitals.  

If approved, is Gem Fest 2024 going to have anyone outside of those firms involved, monitoring what 
is actually taking place? 

Gem Fest 24, is clearly open to all and goes way beyond the realms of a local resident’s birthday, with 
friends and family, attending. You cannot control who comes here or how many. Especially because of 
the length of time this unlicenced event has now been advertised - August 2023 announcing there will 
be a festival and at least November 2023 tickets available online. 

It is no good wanting to talk to any interested party only when they believe an objection is going to be 
submitted or when they realise the cat is out of the bag re the festival’s location. I believe anyway, this 
event is unsafe, in the wrong location, too long and too big. The irresponsible behaviour shown on the 
videos of some of those connected to the running of Gem Fest 24, does not inspire confidence either.   

97

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=RO_CiJJRWfU
https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7334842082277870881
https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7344834642706533664
https://www.tiktok.com/@pullup.recordings/video/7335168901216472353
https://www.pulluprecordings.co.uk/gemfest


4 
 

Gem Fest Licencing Application Howle Hill 
 

There may be many fields but there is not the infrastructure here to support them being used for this 
purpose. This is a very tranquil, rural part of the Parish and indeed Herefordshire itself, which surely 
should be protected.  

There is no benefit to the community which will be adversely affected and, even more so when the 
larger 2025 Gem Fest is sure to follow, if this event is allowed to take place. 

If we can hear the YFest here which is over 3 miles away, held in Ross Town, reverberating around 
the hills, you cannot say that residents will not be affected by Gem Fest, which will be much closer. 

Please do not approve this licence and in turn the attitude and behaviour displayed by those involved.  

Submitted for your consideration, in addition to my earlier one, 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

 

98



ELI REPRE – 1 Representation Form – Interested Parties 1 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
Licensing Act 2003 

 
REPRESENTATION FORM – INTERESTED PARTIES 
 
On making your representation please have regard to the ‘Making 
Representations Guidance Notes’ which further explains the 
process and the information that can be considered by the 
licensing authority. 
When completing this form please print clearly and legibly. 
 

Your Name: 
 

Contact Telephone No. 
 

Address: 
 

 
 
 

 

E-mail address: 
 

Please state your interest in the premises 
you are making a representation about: 
Local resident 
 
 

Name & Address of premises you are making a representation about: 
 
Gemfest at Great Howle Farm 
 

DATA PROTECTION ACT 1998. Please indicate by ticking here …X.. if you are not 
content for your personal details to be circulated as necessary prior to any 
hearing 
A representation must reflect one or more of the licensing objectives, therefore please write the 
details of your representation in the relevant boxes below: 
 

To Prevent Crime & Disorder 
 
 
Public Safety – whilst not objecting to the event, I am concerned regarding the increase 
in traffic on our very small, pot hole ridden local lanes. We frequently have vehicles 
driving far too fast. The potholes are often not easily visible to those unfamiliar with the 
roads. This is hazardous not only to the events’ attendee drivers who have potentially 
had alcohol and/or little sleep, but may have dangerous consequences to other road 
users -particularly horse riders, walkers and cyclists. 
 
To Prevent Public Nuisance – last years Gemfest event did create loud noise. Our house 
position is approx 800 metres away and we will undoubtedly hear the music. Again 
whilst not objecting, it does seem unreasonable that this will continue until 3 a.m. on 2 
consecutive nights!! 
A “noise hotline” is mentioned in the application. I do hope that we local residents will 
be informed of this number so that we are able to report unacceptable noise levels 
should it occur. 
 
 
To Protect Children from Harm 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Please return this form, and 
any additional information 

within the statutory period to: 
The Licensing Section, 
Herefordshire Council,  
Plough Lane, Hereford. 

HR4 0LE 
licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 

99



ELI REPRE – 1 Representation Form – Interested Parties 2 

 
 

Representation Form – Interested Parties 
Suggested Conditions 

 
Premise:_________________________  Your name: ____________________ 

 
It would help us with this application if you could suggest conditions you would be 
happy for the premise to operate under to rectify the problems you are 
experiencing. 
 
All suggested conditions shall be considered in line with the Herefordshire 
Council Licensing Policy, the Licensing Act 2003 and the Licensing Objectives. 
 
To Prevent Crime and Disorder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Safety 
 
 
 
 
 
Prevent Public Nuisance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Protect Children from Harm 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed:  
 
Date: 

100



From: 

Sent: 03 May 2024 21:51 

To: Licensing 

Subject:License application for Gemfestival Ltd 14-16 June 

GEMFESTIVAL LTD – OPPOSITE GREAT HOWLE FARM,   14 – 16 JUNE 2024 

I wish to object to the late night licence applied for by Gemfestival Ltd, as above 

I am a local resident of the hamlet, The Dam.  The Festival site opposite Great Howle Farm is on the 

spine of Star Beech Hill.  In front of and below the site to the south is a ‘bowl’ area of the hill. The 

Dam is  

in a direct line from the site, across a couple of large fields, within clear sight and sound of this 
location,  

hence being an interested party 

My legitimate concerns are 28 hours of broadcast music, particularly pulsating Drum and Base 
music,  

proposed well into the early hours,  reasoning as follows:- 

Less considerate visitors to Great Howle Farm ( holiday let for 20 people  marketed as Star Hill 
Manor via   

letting website ‘Kate and Toms’)  occasionally have music playing max volume – the music, 
particularly  

the base throb, audible from The Dam.  Acoustics of this area also means sound carries.  Given this 
is a  

domestic sound system it follows an outdoor music festival with professional equipment and 
amplifiers,  

adjacent to Great Howle Farm on top of the hill, is going to sound very loud down here and all 
around  

the surrounding area given its high location 

101



 

Looking at the Gemfestival website, the festival is billed as Drum & Base/dance music – a genre I  

understand recognised as one of the most invasive as far as music noise pollution is concerned 

 

Whilst a certain amount of disruption is to be expected (and tolerated in the short term, live and let  

live!) by local residents from any event – a late night licence, especially 2 nights running, feels a step 
too  

far 

 

The licence application represents 28 hours of music over the weekend, including 8 hours within the  

acknowledged Night hours between 11pm and 7am, as defined by The Noise Act of 1996.  
Gemfestival  

website states this is a camping weekend, stands to reason there will be noise and revelry from the 
site  

all weekend anyway, but having a licence for music until 3am on 2 days will be extremely noise-
invasive  

in a normally quiet and peaceful location.  The opportunity for residents to get any sleep is likely to 
be  

limited 

 

I would also like to point out that no-one from Gemfestival Ltd has engaged with anyone I have 
spoken  

to in our hamlet, as ‘neighbours’, to explain what is happening or foster good relations. I would 
suggest  

the majority of residents in the general area will not be aware it is going on until it starts, unless  

discovering by chance, as I did. 

 

Throbbing drum and base music during the Night Hours of 11pm – 7am  will ‘Unreasonably and  

substantially interfere with use or enjoyment of home or premises’ 

 

My concern is, as stated, noise pollution through the night and into the early hours, as that is what I  

anticipate will directly affect The Dam,  but I will just add a couple of general observations 

 

102



1) The choice of site seems odd, access-suitability wise, unless traffic control is in force for all road 
users,  

given the location.  1 ½, possibly closer to 2 miles from the B4234 along a windy fairly narrow 
country  

lane with blind corners, which climbs to the top of the hill before curving  along the spine.  It is a  

spidersweb of lanes here, the majority are (as through The Dam) one track lanes bordered by tall  

hedges, or barely 2 saloon cars wide, only passable with care and pull-ins. 

 

Please read the description of Great Howle Farm (aka Star Hill Manor) on this link 

 

www.kateandtoms.com/houses/starhill-manor 

 

It describes the lanes here, travelling up to the location, and the location itself – which may prove 
helpful  

and informative 

 

2) The site has a Public Footpath running through it, so security could be an issue?  I understand it is  

illegal to deny access to a Public Right of Way.  I am wondering what  happens should walkers like 
me  

wish to use the Public Footpath over the weekend if they have security guards at the site?  Hopefully  

that has been addressed by Gemfestival Ltd 

 

Please take account of the amount of disruption the night time element of the licence would allow, 
and  

reduce it accordingly to avoid the Night hours of 11pm to 7am, to allow local residents a degree of  

respite 

 

Thank you 

103



104



105

embowell
Highlight

embowell_1
Highlight

embowell_2
Highlight

embowell_3
Highlight

embowell_4
Highlight

embowell_5
Highlight

embowell_6
Highlight

embowell_7
Highlight

embowell_8
Highlight



106



107



108



109

embowell_9
Highlight

embowell_10
Highlight

embowell_11
Highlight

embowell_12
Highlight

embowell_13
Highlight

embowell_14
Highlight

embowell_15
Highlight

embowell_16
Highlight

embowell_17
Highlight

embowell_18
Highlight



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



 

124



125



126



127



128



From: XXXXXXX  
Sent: 08 May 2024 16:48 
To: Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Strong objection to GemFest occasional licensed application 
 
To whom it may concern, 
 
I am writing to strongly oppose the application for an occasional premises licence for GemFest at 
Great Howle Farm. My objections stem from serious concerns regarding the negative impact such an 
event would have on our community, particularly in light of past occurrences. 
 
It is imperative to address the significant history of criminal activities associated with past events held 
at similar venues on Howle Hill. Previous instances have seen a disturbing trend of criminal 
behaviour, including incidents of assault, car crashes resulting from impaired and careless driving in 
country lanes, and tragically, even instances of sexual assault. These occurrences not only jeopardise 
the safety and well-being of attendees but also cast a shadow of fear and anxiety over the local 
residents. 
 
Moreover, the inherent risks posed by large gatherings, amplified by the remote location of Great 
Howle Farm, heighten the potential for such incidents to escalate beyond manageable proportions. 
The strain placed on law enforcement and emergency services to maintain order and respond to 
emergencies amidst such chaos is both unsustainable and unacceptable. 
 
In addition to these concerns, I urge you to consider the impact of GemFest on the local wildlife and 
livestock, including horses. The increased human activity, noise pollution, and disruption to the 
natural environment can cause distress and harm to wildlife populations and domesticated animals. 
Great Howle Farm is not only a venue for human recreation but also a habitat for various species of 
wildlife and a home to livestock, including horses. Granting a licence for GemFest could subject these 
animals to unnecessary stress and potential harm. 
 
In light of these concerns, I implore you to prioritize the safety and welfare of our community, 
including both human and non-human residents, by denying the application for the occasional 
premises licence for GemFest at Great Howle Farm. 
 
Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 

129



130



131




	Agenda
	 Public Information
	Licensing Hearing Flowchart

	 The Nolan Principles
	5 Review of a premises licence in respect of: Ruby Chinese Takeaway, 23 Union Street, Hereford, HR1 2BT called by West Mercia Police - Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1 – Application Form for Review
	Appendix 2 – Hearing Decision Notice 25.06.2018
	Appendix 3 – Current Premises Licence
	Appendix 4 - Relevant pages of the Section 182 Guidance

	6 Application to Grant a Premises Licence in respect of Gemfest 2024 - Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1 – Application Form
	Appendix 2 – Trading Standards Representation
	Appendix 3 – Public Representations




